
NOTICE

OF

MEETING 

LICENSING & PUBLIC SPACE 
PROTECTION ORDER (PSPO) SUB 

COMMITTEE
will meet on

TUESDAY, 4TH JUNE, 2019

At 10.00 am

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER, ETON TOWN COUNCIL, 102 HIGH STREET, ETON, WINDSOR, SL4 6AJ

TO: MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING & PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER (PSPO) SUB 
COMMITTEE

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead - Governance - Issued: 24 May 2019

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator SHILPA MANEK 01628 796310

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate in the Town Hall 
Car Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN

To appoint a Chairman for the duration of the meeting.
 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.
 

5 - 6

4.  MINUTES

To note the minutes of the last Sub Committee.
 

7 - 16

5.  PROCEDURES FOR SUB COMMITTEE

To note the procedural details for the meeting.
 

17 - 18

6.  CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence under the 
Licensing Act for ATIK, 19 Williams Street, Windsor, SL4 1BB.
 

19 - 592





This page is intentionally left blank



 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING PANEL SUB-COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 17 APRIL 2019

PRESENT: Councillors John Bowden, Sayonara Luxton and Derek Wilson

Also in attendance: Councillor Leo Walters

Officers: Sarah Conquest, Roxana Khakinia, Shilpa Manek and Steve Smith

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 

Councillor Bowden proposed Councillor Luxton to be Chairman for the Panel. This was 
seconded by Councillor Wilson.

RESOLVED: That Councillor Luxton would be the Chairman for the Panel.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

No Apologies for Absence were received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Derek Wilson declared a personal interest as he was a member of the Bray Parish 
Council. Councillor Wilson declared that he had also completed the declaration register at the 
Parish Council where he had declared that if he had commented and voted on an application 
at Parish level, he would look at the same application with an open mind and with what 
evidence was in front of him if the application came to borough level.

Councillor Wilson was attending the Licensing Panel Sub Committee with an open mind.

PROCEDURES FOR LICENSING PANEL SUB COMMITTEE 

The Chairman explained the procedures for the running of the Licensing Panel Sub 
Committee. These were part of the Agenda pack.

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE UNDER 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

Licensing Officer

The Licensing Officer, Steve Smith, introduced the application for Members to consider. The 
Licensing Officer explained that the application related to a new premises license. The 
Licensing Officer informed the Panel that this was a new application for a premises licence for 
5 events to be held at the field within Rinders Farm, Fifield, Maidenhead, SL6 2NS, per year 
for up to 3000 attendees. The main event being Fi-Fest, a family oriented event over two days 
which was planned for 13th and 14th July 2019. The opening hours would be 10:00hrs until 
23:00hrs on Friday and Saturday and 10:00hrs to 22:00hrs on Sunday.

The Licensing Officer had received no relevant representations from any of the responsible 
authorities except the Environmental Health (CPES) and Trading Standards who requested a 
number of conditions relating to one of four key objectives, which were available in the 
Agenda pack and which had been agreed by the applicant. A large number of emails had 

Public Document Pack

7

Agenda Item 4



been received from interested parties including Ward Members, the Parish Council and local 
residents. All the representations were available in the Agenda pack.

The Licensing Officer informed the Panel that Mr Lee Page was the applicant and the 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was Mrs Tracey Page. 

The Licensing Officer reminded the Panel that they should have consideration for the four 
licensing objectives when making their decision on whether to grant the new premises licence, 
modifying the conditions of the licence by altering or omitting or adding to them, or to reject the 
whole or part of the application.

Questions to the Licensing Officer

Councillor Bowden requested clarification on the condition suggested by Environmental 
Health. Councillor Bowden continued and asked about the noise levels and effects on the 
nearest residential property. The Licensing Officer informed the Panel that the noise should 
not exceed 15 Db. This would be monitored every 15 minutes from the highest noise 
locations. Councillor Bowden asked the Licensing Officer who had responded from Thames 
Valley Police and the Fire Authority and was informed that it was the Licensing Officer from 
TVP and the Fire Safety Officer from the Fire Authority. They always responded and on this 
application, they both had no issues.

Councillor Wilson requested some clarification on EPL02 and EPL03, conditions suggested by 
Environmental Health. The Licensing Officer informed the Panel that any conditions could be 
amended if the Panel felt they wanted to.

Councillor Luxton asked if spot checks would be carried out during the event and was 
informed that they would be. Councillor Luxton continued and asked if the police would be 
present at the event and was informed that on a Monday morning before any event, large or 
small, Thames Valley Police and RBWM Licensing have a meeting and it is decided then. 
Councillor Luxton asked the Licensing Officer that on EPL10 of the Environmental Health 
conditions, it refers to contact details in case of a complaint, who would be the contacts. The 
Licensing Officer informed the Panel that in the first instance it would be the event organisers 
and then the borough and then to phone 101.

Applicant’s Case

The applicants case was presented to the Panel by Mrs Tracey Page, the DPS for the event. 
Mrs Tracey Page started by giving the Panel some information on her background and the 
various roles that she had held.

Mrs Tracey Page informed the Panel that she had been involved in running the night time 
economy business for 18 years, that the family had run a similar event last year on a smaller 
basis and in a smaller field. Mrs Page informed the Panel that the applicant, her son, lived 
very close to the location of the field. Mrs Page introduced the applicant, Mr Lee Page and the 
land owner, Mr Rinder.

Mrs Page informed the panel of all the following points for the application and showed a short 
video of last year’s FiFest event which was on a much smaller scale and in a different location.

The following points were presented to the Panel:

 The application was for five events, one event was equivalent to one day. This 
application was specific to FiFest, which was a three day live music festival for all the 
family. The additional two events would be planned around Christmas. FiFest would be 
over Friday, Saturday and Sunday which would have live music, children’s 
entertainment, food, drink and film.

8



 The objectives of FiFest were to provide a package of entertainment for all the family 
including an interpersonal area for children having plays, storytelling, pottery, sandpits 
etc. None of the live music would be aimed at the young children. There would be a 
sensory room for autistic children. All the artists, entertainers and vendors would be 
local to the area.

 All other local events that had taken place in the area such as Holyport Festival, 
maidenhead Festival, all had capacities of over 3000 people, hence this was the 
capacity in the application.

 The management plan would be in place 28 days before the event, it was a living 
document and therefore changing all the time.

Mrs page went through the four licensing objectives and highlighted the following points:

 SIA licenced officers would be in static positions and roaming around at the event.
 There would be an emergency response vehicle on site.
 There would be no untrained volunteers on the site.
 The ”Think 25” policy would be operated at the event, all bar staff working at the event 

were all staff from the family business so had all been trained. There would be no 
contracted staff. There would be fixed security at the bars to conduct assessments.

 There would be a zero tolerance policy.
 There would be four DPS’s on site all day.
 Breathalysers would be used on any intoxicated persons. If levels were high, no more 

alcohol would be served to them. If very high, they would be escorted to the exit, 
allowed to make one call to inform others in the event and then escorted off the exit.

 A search policy would be used on entry.
 An external portal was already selling the tickets for the event. Tickets would be 

scanned on entry and clickers would be used on an in and out basis.
 All risk assessments and plans would be submitted to the Safety Advisory Group at 

least 28 days before the event.
 All food vendors would be asked to provide food hygiene certificates and gas safety 

certificates.
 There would be three different types of tickets being sold, one for children, one for 

adults who had purchased children tickets and the last for other festival goers. The 
other festival goers would not be able to access the children’s areas. There would be 
static security in position, all would be female SIA trained staff.

 A one use industry standard wristband would be used.
 There would be a lost children’s point.
 Noise would be managed as described in the application.

Questions to the Applicant by the Licensing Officer

None

Questions to the Applicant by Legal

None

Questions to the Applicant by Members

Councillor Bowden asked if a traffic plan was in place and how all the traffic entering and 
leaving the event was to be managed. Lee Page informed the Panel that the private land 
belonged to Mr Rinder and there would be five members of static security in place. The traffic 
would all be diverted to the left hand side and there would be sufficient signage up to Forest 
Hill Road for exiting traffic. The entrance from Holyport would turn left onto the Rinder Farm 
and from Windsor, turn right. A traffic management team would guide all traffic in and out of 
the venue.

9



Councillor Bowden continued and asked about further clarification on the bridal ways and the 
footpaths. Mr Rinder informed the Panel that the bridalways ran through the centre of the site 
and access was through Holyport and Fifield. The footpaths ran to the side of the fields and no 
footpaths were being closed. There was limited footpath on the B road but access was quite 
good by foot. The location of the field excellent, only ten minutes away from junctions 8/9 and 
6 on the M4. The emergency access was going to be through the farm on the event days. 

Councillor Wilson asked if any of the bridalways were going to be closed during the event 
days. Lee Page informed the panel that no bridalways were going to be closed during any of 
the event days. In fact the horse riding clubs were all in support of the event as were the dog 
and cat home. Mr Rinder informed the Panel that the livestock enjoyed music and accepted it 
quite well. Music was played to the livestock before milking on his farm.

Councillor Wilson asked how would the emergency vehicles leave the site and were informed 
that access would be made available and the exit would be through Stroud Farm and an air 
ambulance site would also be available.

Councillor Luxton asked how many of the SIA staff would be male and female. Lee Page 
informed the Panel that there would be 32 SIA trained staff and this would be half male and 
half female.

Councillor Luxton asked how the 32 staff would be allocated and was informed that there 
would be five static points, each with two staff, two staff would be backstage, eight staff would 
be between the bar, kidszone and roaming, two would be at the car park and five at the 
entrance. Two further staff would form a mobile reactive team and three further staff would be 
roaming.

Councillor Luxton asked why there were only 32 staff and was informed that this was the HSE 
recommendation. In addition to the 32 SIA trained staff there would be 20 fire marshal’s and 
12 first aiders and there was a possibility that the street angels would also be on board.

Councillor Luxton asked if a draft plan was in place or would the plan be agreed with Licensing 
at a later date. The Licensing Officer informed the Panel that if the license was approved, all 
plans would be presented to the Safety Advisory Group prior to the event.

Other points that were raised by the Panel included:

 Was a dedicated taxi drop off point available at the event and it was confirmed that a 
point was available.

 When would the Safety Advisory Group meet to discuss this event. The Panel were 
advised that the Group met on a monthly basis and this was organised by the 
Licensing team. All events taking place in the borough were discussed at this meeting 
which was attended by all the blue light services.

 Had the presales been undertaken already for the events. Mrs Page informed the 
Panel that an independent company were selling the tickets for the event and would be 
holding the funds. If the event did not take place, all funds would be refunded to the 
buyers.

 Was there public liability insurance in place and it was confirmed that this had already 
been put into place.

 The event last year was over two days, were five days needed this year. Mrs Page 
informed the Panel that they wanted to have an event which was for a reasonable 
price and with good infrastructure and for this a good capacity was required.

 The Panel were very concerned that the children’s zone was so close to the bar and 
there was only a hedge between them. The Panel were reassured that there was only 
one access to the children’s zone where there would be SIA trained staff.

 How would the guests be controlled on the grounds if they had drunk too much 
alcohol. Lee Page informed the Panel that roaming staff and bar staff would be 
monitoring this. If they felt someone had drunk too much, they would be breatherlised. 

10



If they refused at the entrance, they would be refused entry to the event and on the 
grounds, they would not be allowed to purchase anymore alcohol.

 There was a zero policy of bringing alcohol into the premises, only soft drinks could be 
taken into the premises. There was zero tolerance to drugs, every person would be 
subject to being searched. The applicant would be happy to have drug dogs.

 The Panel were concerned about the rubbish and mess created as a result of the 
event. The Panel were advised that marshals would be present and monitoring during 
the event and within 100m outside the event. After the event 200m outside would be 
monitored and cleared. There would be signage about rubbish, noise and parking.

Questions to the Applicant by Objectors

None

First Objectors’ Case

Ken Elvin, Bray Parish Council Chairman, informed the Panel that Bray Parish Council had 
unanimously agreed to refuse the application for the following reasons:

 The 2018 venue of the event was different and smaller.
 Safety issue with respect to the field proposed and rights of way and bridalways.
 The entrance of the event was a through route to Windsor, there was little public 

transport and there would be car traffic to enter the event.
 The neighbours would be affected, especially the horse riding school.
 The event was advertised as a family-friendly event but the children’s area was near 

the bar and the car park.

All the points had been put in the solicitors advice which had been circulated to all Panel 
Members. Ken Elvin highlighted that there was no operating or transport schedule and 
safeguarding and health and safety were an issue.

Questions to the First Objector by the Licensing Officer

None

Questions to the First Objector by Legal

None

Questions to the First Objector by Members

The Panel asked the Objector how he would be affected by the event. Ken Elvin informed the 
Panel that he lived in the vicinity and had been a part of Bray Parish Council for the past 22 
years. Ken Elvin was speaking on behalf of his residents.

Mrs Page informed the Panel that she had been involved in many licensing applications. 
Normally the Parish Council would invite the applicant to discuss the application and answer 
any questions. Bray Parish Council had been contacted by the applicant but had not been 
invited to any meetings where the application had been discussed. Ken Elvin pointed out that 
many of the issues they had had been addressed. Mrs Page continued to inform the Panel 
that there were no newt presence on the site, no footpaths were being closed, Green Lane did 
provide parking points and no accidents had been reported. There had been no objectives 
from the horse riding school and FiFest was not proposed for school holidays.

Mr Rinder pointed out that the bridalways were used as a by-way and carts track for the 
public. The Rinder Family had cleared all the paths for the use of the public. 

Second Objectors’ Case

11



Councillor Leo Walters, Ward Councillor, informed the Panel that the 2018 event was very 
different, it was on a smaller scale and on a different field. Of the 81 supporters, not many 
were local and all the 21 objectors were local.

The lanes around the proposed field were very narrow with hardly any footpaths, this could 
have very serious effects.
Councillor Walters felt that the four licensing objectives were not being met.

Mrs Page informed the Panel that both local horse riding schools were in support of the 
application. All footpaths were going to be kept open.

Questions to the Second Objector by the Licensing Officer

None

Questions to the Second Objector  by Legal

None

Questions to the Second Objector by Members

None

Applicant’s Summary

There was local support for FiFest from attendees of last year’s event. The applicants were 
members of the local community, professionals in the field and had knowledge of the licensing 
objectives. The applicants wanted to engage with anyone who had an objection. The 
children’s entertainment, musicians, food stalls were all local businesses. The alcohol was 
from a local brewery. The staff were all local too. 

The applicants had an impeccable history of running licenced premises.

There had been no objections from interested parties, only conditions, which had all been 
accepted.

Objectors’ Summary

The objectors highlighted that it was a false premise and it was not the same event as last 
year. The event was solely to make money. The local residents were very concerned. The 
legal advice from Bray Parish Council pointed out all the inefficiencies. There was no 
completed operating procedure.

Licensing Officer Summary

The Licensing Officer pointed out that the SIA standards Green guide stated that an event of 
this size should have 1:100 trained staff, sufficient SIA trained staff were being provided for 
the event. Each event was counted as one day. The applicants were happy with three days 
instead of five days.

Decision

The Sub Committee carefully considered all the submissions and noted that there were no 
objections from the responsible authorities which included RBFRS, Planning, Local 
Safeguarding Children’s Board, Public Health, Thames Valley Police and RBWM Licensing. 
The Panel noted a submission made in the form of an email from Environmental Health and 
Trading Standards requesting conditions to be added to the application, which had been 
agreed by the Applicant.

12



The Sub-Committee after very careful consideration, decided that the application for a new 
premises licence should be refused for failing to promote the four licensing objectives; the 
prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection if children from harm. 

The following points were highlighted:

 The wider community interests – the character of the surrounding area, there were 
no footpaths on the Forest Green Road where the festival exit was proposed and 
customers could park their cars and walk across to the festival. There were no 
footpaths for most of Gays Lane, only ditches on either side. The festival would also 
effect the bridle ways and the public footpaths. 

 The wider community interests – no measures of dealing with queuing of 
customers entering the festival and dispersal of customers from the festival; insufficient 
information on taxi marshalling and dedicated pick up and drop off points.

 Promoting the prevention of Crime and Disorder – concerns of the Panel included 
insufficient search procedures in place, no use of CCTV, no measures in place for 
promoting zero percent tolerance to drugs. The Panel felt that not enough staff would 
be at the festival to carry out in-depth searches for drugs and weapons on the 
entrance. For a crowd of 3000 people, not enough staff would be present to control 
binge drinking and the consequences of it.

 Promoting the prevention of public nuisance – The Panel were concerned about 
the disposal of waste, particularly glass, the litter in the vicinity of the premises during 
and after the festival, the noise from deliveries and collections, insufficient measures in 
place to control behaviour and queues, not enough door supervisors to encourage 
quiet departure. The Panel were concerned as no information was provided on any 
smoking policies, waste management and setting up and winding down procedures.

 Promoting public safety – The Panel were concerned that insufficient information 
was provided on the promotion of sensible drinking, measures taken to prevent drug 
spiking and safe capacities. The Panel felt that no detailed information was provided 
on fire safety, appropriate access for emergency services and ensuring appropriate 
limits on the maximum capacity of the premises.

 Promoting the prevention of Children from harm – the RBWM policy states that this 
includes the protection of children from moral, psychological and physical harm, also 
protecting children from the wider harms such as exposure to strong language and 
sexual expletives. The sale of alcohol would be over a prolonged period of two long 
consecutive days. Often a factor in Child Sexual Exploitation was where young people 
may be encouraged or coerced to drink; alcohol may also be a factor in risk taking 
behaviour by young people who drink irresponsibly and then get involved in activities 
that otherwise they would not. The Panel were very concerned that there was lack of a 
robust operating schedule outlining in particular how the applicant would address the 
children from harm objective. The Panel were very concerned that the children’s area 
was located very close to the bar, young children would be exposed to alcohol and 
intoxicated people over a long period of time which may lead to strong language being 
used. There was a lack of demonstration by the applicant on how children and young 
people would be safeguarded at the event. There was insufficient information on the 
size of the children’s area, what, if any medical assistance would be within the 
children’s area, the capacity at any one time and how this would be monitored.

The main concerns that have already been briefly mentioned are as follows:

13



 Staffing levels, although the number was within the guidance, it was felt that 
32 for a crowd of 3000 would not be sufficient to promote the licensing 
objectives.

 There were major concerns about the proximity of the bar to the children’s 
area. Despite the assurances that there was enough of a gap between the 
two areas it was felt that noise levels and adult language emanating from 
the area were in too close a proximity of children undermining the objective 
of protecting children from harm.

 There was no information provided to detail the actual size and capacity of 
the children’s area and how this would be enforced. There were concerns of 
overcrowding in the area. Furthermore it was unclear as to exactly who 
would be in the children’s area and if they would all have the necessary 
DBS checks.

 There was not enough information as to the role of the staff at entrance of 
children’s area other than to check wristbands and who would be 
responsible for the welfare of children in the area.

 There was no information as to how staff would be identified. Would there 
be coloured tabards/jackets to enable parents and children to identify first 
aiders etc. in the case of an emergency.

 The proposed hours for alcohol consumption were very long and the noise 
levels of the people in attendance were a cause for concern especially on 
the Sunday when people would be going to work/school the next day.

 There was no information provided as to what, if any, contingencies had 
been put in place for dealing with adverse weather conditions.

 The panel understood that external agencies had yet to be engaged until 
the application had been successful but there were no draft/ template 
documents to show any processes or procedures. It was felt that the 
applicant was not fully prepared in terms of the application process, 
although there was a large amount of information to take into consideration 
there was not enough detail. There was a lack of detailed plans or maps, no 
measurements were provided. Overall it was agreed that the application 
was lacking detail and despite the information which was provided verbally 
on the day the panel felt they had not been provided with sufficient 
information to establish promotion of the licensing objectives.

The Panel would have liked to see a robust operating schedule, traffic management plan, 
transportation plan, a risk management plan and some more detail on the crowd management 
and first aid/safety information. The Panel would have liked to see a higher level of detail in 
the application from the third parties, a sample document based on the type and size of the 
event.

It was unanimously agreed that the panel did not feel satisfied that this application did 
enough to promote the licensing objectives. The application was REFUSED.

14



The meeting, which began at 10.00 am, finished at 3.45 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

PROCEDURES

The Chairman will welcome all parties to the meeting, introduce the Sub-
Committee Members and officers present, and outline the procedure as 
below:

a) The Licensing Officer to outline the application and the decision to be 
taken

b) Members to ask questions of the Licensing Officer

c) Applicant to ask questions of the Licensing Officer

d) The Applicant to put their case to the Sub-Committee and clarify any 
information arising from the Licensing Officer’s outline

e) Members to ask questions of the Applicant

f) Objectors to ask question of the Applicant

g) Any Objectors to address the Sub-Committee and put their case

h) Members to ask questions of the Objectors

i) Applicant to ask questions of the Objectors

j) Any party requested by the Applicant to address the Sub-Committee 
(at the Sub-Committee’s discretion)

k) Objectors to briefly summarise their position

l) Applicant to briefly summarise their position

m) Licensing Officer to provide a summary

n) Chair to ask all parties if they have said all that they wish to

o) Sub-Committee to retire for deliberations

N.B. Decision letter to be sent to applicant within 5 working days

17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO LICENSING PANEL SUB COMMITTEE. 

 
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

LICENSING PANEL SUB COMMITTEE:  4th June 2019 

OFFICER REPORTING:  

A) The Application 

Applicant: - Chief Constable of Thames Valley Police 

Premises: - ATIK, 19 Williams Street, Windsor, SL4 1BB  

The application is for a review of the Premises Licence. 

Under the following Licensing Objectives:- 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Prevention of Public Nuisance, 

Protection of Children from Harm and Public Safety 

 

Premises Licence Holders: - The Delic Group Ltd. 

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS): Mr. Stephen Fleury 
 

The applicant, Thames Valley Police have requested the following 

amendments to licensing hours and the following conditions. 
 

1. Minimum age of entry 21 years and over. 

2. The sale of alcohol on a Friday and Saturday to be 02.00hrs with a last entry 
time of 00.30hrs. 

3. The sale of alcohol on a Friday and Saturday to be 01.00hrs with a last entry 
time of 23.30hrs. 

4. No alcohol promotions. 

B) Relevant Representations 

Responsible Authorities. 

a .  Environmental Health (CPES):   Attached. 

b .  RBFRS (Fire Officer):    No comment 
c .  Planning Officer:     None received  

d .  Local Safeguarding Children's Board (LSCB) None received 
e .  Public Health:     None received 
f .  Trading Standards:     No comment 

g .  RBWM Licensing:               Attached. 
 

Within the application submitted by Thames Valley Police, are a 

number of Witness Statements supporting the application.  
19

Agenda Item 6



 Mr. David Scott, RBWM Head of Communities, Enforcement and 
Partnership. 

 Mrs. Debie Pearmain Thames Valley Police Licensing Officer.  

 Inspector Warbrick, Thames Valley Police. 

 PC K Horsley, Thames Valley Police. 

 PC Dave Higgs, Thames Valley Police. 

 
Interested Parties. 

 

 A further three (3) supporting Witness Statements are from interested 
parties (local residents), these are attached to the application submitted 

by Thames Valley Police. 

Responsible Authorities: 

Environmental Heath have requested additional measures relating to the prevention of 
public nuisance, memorandum attached.  

RBWM Licensing Team, supported the application, memorandum attached. 

Trading Standards and The Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescues Service responded to 
the application, not proposing to make any representations. 

 
C) It is considered that the following policies have a bearing upon the 

application.  
 

RBWM Licensing Policy:- 

6. Key Strategies for 2016 – 2021 

6.1 Framework Hours 

The current staggered closing times of licensed premises, that has developed since 
2005 in the Royal Borough, has helped to reduce the problems associated with large 
numbers of people leaving premises at the same time and reduced congestion at taxi 
ranks and fast food outlets. However, the later opening hours have brought increased 

levels of crime, disorder and nuisance. Responsible Authorities, local residents and local 
Councillors have reported many issues, including noise, anti-social behaviour and litter, 

which are having an adverse impact on their quality of life. In particular, there has been 
an increase in violent crime in Windsor town centre between the hours of 00:00 and 
04:00. 

Having considered the evidence of alcohol related crime, disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, the number of late night premises and, in particular, the social, practical 
and regulatory impacts on the morning after the night before, the Licensing Authority 
has adopted a Framework Hours Policy. This Framework Hours Policy will apply to 

new and variation applications. 

 

20



The Framework Hours  
are: Premises Type: 

Commencement Hour for  
Licensable Activities  

No earlier than : 

Terminal Hour for  
Licensable Activities  

No later than: 

 Off licence  09:00am  11:00pm 

 Restaurant  09:00am  01:00am 
 

• Pub/Bars/Night • 10:00am • 02:00am 

 Clubs     

• Takeaways • n/a • 02:00am  

Have greater freedom to operate outside framework hours. Such venues are 
predominantly seated. Examples include: 
 

 Theatres 

 Cinemas 

 Qualifying Clubs 

For the purpose of this policy, premises shall be considered as a restaurant or café if 

the sale of alcohol is made only to seated customers who are also dining and where 

this is a condition of the licence, or a condition volunteered in the Operating Schedule 

for the premises. Where such conditions have not been offered, the premises will be 

treated as a public house. 

Framework Hours are intended to guide applicants on the Licensing Authority’s 
expectations when preparing their Operating Schedule. However, if no relevant 
representations are received, the application will be granted by the Licensing Authority 

under delegated powers. 

Any conditions setting out hours of premises refers, unless otherwise stated, to the 
hours during which licensable activities may take place pursuant to the Premises 
Licence or Club premises Certificate. The Licensing Authority expects the premises to 

close thirty minutes after the terminal hour for the latest licensable activity. 

6.4 Wider Community Interest 

The Licensing Authority considers that its licensing functions are exercised in the 
public interest, furthermore that the licensing authority is under a duty to take any steps 
with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in the interests of the wider 

community and not just those of the individual licence holder. 
The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to those applications in close 
proximity to residential premises and the likely effect on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives in such circumstances. Subject to any relevant representations, the 
Licensing Authority will have particular regard to: 

 The nature of the activities 

 The character of the surrounding area 

 Measures for limitation of noise emissions from the premises. These may 
include as appropriate; noise limitation devices, sound insulation, 

whether windows are to be opened, the insulation of acoustic lobbies and 
double glazing 

 Measures to deal with queuing, where necessary 
 

21



 Use of outdoor areas 

 Measures to deal with dispersal of customers from the premises as 

necessary, including the employment of door supervisors, use of dedicated 
Hackney Carriage / Private Hire firms, notices in the premises requesting 

customers to respect neighbours 
 Winding down periods, particularly in public houses and nightclubs etc. 

7. Promoting the Prevention of Crime and Disorder  

Where relevant representations have been made, the Licensing Authority will have 
particular regard to the following issues in relation to the crime and disorder objective: 
 

 Measures to prevent bottles being carried from premises 

  Use of drinks’ promotions  

 Measures to prevent binge drinking  

 Participation in the Pub Watch Scheme 

  Use of door supervisors 

  Training staff in crime prevention measures 

  Search procedures 

  Use of close circuit television 

  Lighting 

  Where premises are new, designing out crime 

  Quality of surveillance of premises  

Drugs  

The Licensing Authority recognises that drug use by young people in a club 
environment is not something that is relevant to all licensed premises. However, it is 

also recognised that special conditions will need to be imposed for certain types of 
venues to reduce the sale and consumption of drugs. Where relevant representations 
are made by the Police, the conditions to be imposed in such cases are set out in 

Annexe 1 – Pool of Conditions, although further conditions may be imposed from time 
to time. These conditions take into account the "Safer Clubbing guidance" issued by 

the Home Office. In all cases where these conditions are to be imposed, advice will be 
taken from the local Drugs and Alcohol Action Team and the Police.  

In addition to meeting the requirements of the licensing objectives, licensees have a 
social responsibility not to sell drug paraphernalia and other products that promote 
drug use.  

Officers of the Licensing Team will engage in the following activities:-  
 

 Provide clear information on the Council's policy on safer clubbing in its local 

statement of policy.  

 Provide clear information on how to apply for a Premises Licence or Club 

Premises Certificate.  

 Provide induction training to Councillors serving on Licensing Panels.  

 Advise venue owners on how to establish and maintain a safe environment.  

 Advise venue owners, in partnership with the Thames Valley Police, on 

developing a venue drugs policy.  

 Ensure that sufficient medical staff is always present and are trained to a high 

standard.   
22



 Liaise with Police and other officers to ensure good communication about 

potentially dangerous venues.  

 Encourage venues to use outreach services.  

 Encourage venues to provide safe transport home.  

 Monitor the operation of clubs at times of peak occupancy.  

 Ensure that door supervisors are properly trained and registered with the 

Security Industry Authority. 

  Offer to assist with detecting drugs with the use of sniffer dogs and the 

“Itemiser” drugs detection equipment.  

Door Supervisors  

Whenever any persons are employed at licensed premises to carry out any security 
activity, all such persons must be licensed with the Security Industry Authority. Where 
relevant representations are made the Licensing Authority may consider that certain 

premises require strict supervision for the purpose of promoting the reduction of crime 
and disorder. In such cases, the Licensing Authority may impose a condition that 

licensed door supervisors must be employed at the premises either at all times or at 
such times as certain licensable activities are being carried out.  

8. Promoting Public Safety 

 

Where relevant representation have been made, the Licensing Authority will have 

particular regard to the following issues in relation to the public safety objective: 

 The use of shatterproof glasses 

 The promotion of sensible drinking 

 Measures taken to prevent drug spiking 

 Drugs policies 

 Safe capacities 

In appropriate cases, the following conditions may be imposed on premises licences to 

ensure the safety of those attending the premises: 

 That a personal licence-holder shall be present at all times when the premises 

are open for the sale of alcohol 

 Suitably qualified first-aiders will be required 

 

9. Promoting the Prevention of Public Nuisance  

 

Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority will have particular 

regard to the following issues in relation to the public nuisance objective:  

 

   The disposal of waste, particularly glass  

   The use and maintenance of plant, including air extraction and ventilation   

systems  

   Litter in the vicinity of the premises  

   Noise from deliveries / collections to and from the premises  

   Measures to control behaviour and queues  23



   Whether door supervisors are able to stay at the entrance to encourage quiet 

departure  

   The provision of Hackney Carriage / Private Hire services at the premises  

Approved by Full Council December 2015 Final Version Page 10 of 26  

   Signs on doors and on tables encouraging consideration to the neighbours  

 

Noise  

 

Where relevant representations are made the Licensing Authority will impose conditions 

in relation to licensed premises to prevent unnecessary noise and disturbance to local 

residents where relevant representations are made. This may include restrictions on 

times when music or other licensable activities may take place and may impose 

technical restrictions on levels of sound at premises. Conditions may also be imposed 

requiring licensees to display signs at all exits from premises reminding customers to 

leave premises quietly and to respect the rights of nearby residents.  

 

10. Promoting the Prevention of Children from Harm  

 

10.1 The Royal Borough recognises that the protection of children from harm includes 

the protection of children from moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes 

not only protecting children from the harms directly associated with alcohol consumption 

but also wider harms such as exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for 

example, in the context of exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). The 

Licensing Authority will also consider the need to protect children from sexual 

exploitation when undertaking licensing functions.  

 

10.2 The Royal Borough will give considerable weight to representations about child 

protection matters. In addition to the Local Safeguarding Children Board, the Director 

of Public Health may also have access to relevant evidence to inform such 

representations. These representations may include, amongst other things, the use of 

health data about harms that alcohol can cause to underage drinkers. In relation to 

applications for the grant of a licence in areas where evidence is presented on high 

levels of alcohol-related harms in persons aged under 18, the Licensing Authority will 

have particular regard to ensure that conditions are imposed to ensure that this objective 

is effectively promoted. Applicants are therefore expected to provide a robust Operating 

Schedule outlining in particular how they will address the prevention of children from 

harm objective.  

 

10.3 Alcohol is often a factor in child sexual exploitation, where young people may be 

encouraged or coerced to drink; alcohol may also be a factor in risk taking behaviour by 

young people who drink irresponsibly and then get involved in activities that otherwise 

they would not. Nationally, evidence has been found of the sexual exploitation of 

children taking place on licensed premises, or licensed premises being used for the 

purposes of grooming and enticement.  

 

24



10.4 The Windsor and Maidenhead Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) works 

with other statutory authorities and the licensing trade to promote risk management and 

safeguarding in relation to child sexual exploitation. The LSCB can provide advice to 

assist licensees to identify risk and report concerns at different types of licensed 

premises so that children remain safe and businesses operate responsibly.  

10.5 The Licensing Authority encourages license holders and operators of licensed 

premises: 1) To ensure that they are fully aware of the signs of child sexual exploitation 

and to understand that the sexual exploitation of a child is sexual abuse and a criminal 

offence and 2) To raise the awareness of their staff about child sexual exploitation and 

provide intelligence to the appropriate authorities about concerns and about 

perpetrators who may be operating in their areas.  

 

10.6 The LSCB, the NWG and the Royal Borough websites contain more information 

about child sexual exploitation matters and can be found here: http://www.wamlscb.org/ 

http://www.nwgnetwork.org/ Approved by Full Council December 2015 Final Version 

Page 11 of 26 http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/social_child_protect.htm  

 

10.7 All applicants need to demonstrate how children and young people will be 

safeguarded if attending the licensed premises, or how it will be ensured that they do 

not gain access to the premises if not appropriate. Where relevant representations are 

made in relation to the protection of children from harm the Licensing Authority may 

impose conditions restricting the access of children or excluding them altogether from 

licensed premises. Such conditions will be imposed for the prevention of harm to 

children objective. Examples of premises which may be included are:  

 

 Where there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or with a 

reputation for under-age drinking  

 With a known association with drug taking or dealing  

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises  

 Where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided  

 Where there is concern or evidence that young people are being exploited  

 

Options will include:  

 Limitations on the hours when children may be present  

 Age limitations below 18  

 Limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place  

 Requirements for accompanying adults  

 Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable 

   activities are taking place 

  The provision of a full range of non-alcoholic drinks  

 

10.8 Where cinemas are concerned, the Council will impose conditions that children will 

be restricted from viewing age-restricted films classified according to the 

recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification or the Local Authority itself.  

 

25

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/social_child_protect.htm


10.9 Conditions may be imposed on licences for premises where unaccompanied 

children will be present at places of public entertainment to the effect that adult staff 

must be present to control the access and egress of children and to ensure their safety.  

 

10.10 On the receipt of any application the licensing officers of the Licensing Authority 

will undertake a preliminary assessment as to whether Child Protection issues arise. 

Where it is considered that such issues are engaged the licensing officers will mark the 

application for the immediate attention of the Local Safeguarding Children Board with a 

request that any relevant representations, if required, should be made to the licensing 

authority within the relevant time period for the submission of relevant representations. 

D) 182 National Guidance April 2017 

Crime and Disorder 

2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on 

crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety 

Partnership (CSP). 

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate 

with the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding 

relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important 

role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly 

licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies 

are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may 

include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led 

operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. 

Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to 

ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not 

enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed. 

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 

including the prevention of illegal working in premises (see paragraph 10.10). For 

example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 

presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 

outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 

crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises 

for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its 

customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be 

appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure 

that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the 

terms of the condition. 

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered 

an appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and 

town centre leisure areas with a high density of licenced premises. These systems 

allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and 
26



facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers 

and staff on the premises. 

2.5 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises 

supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be 

the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing 

authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and 

appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will 

usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 

licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be 

justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the 

circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency could 

give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety. 

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 

prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work 

with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these 

matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal 

working in the licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to 

undertake right to work check on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 

requiring that a copy of any documents checked as part of a right to work check are 

retained at the licensed premises. 

Public Safety 

2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their 

premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of 

people using the relevant premises rather public health which is addressed in other 

legislation. 

Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate 

harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol 

poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote crime and disorder 

objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety 

condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health more generally, but it should not 

be the purpose of the condition as this would be outside the licensing authority’s powers 

(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises 

licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene. 

2.8 A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may 

include: 

 Fire safety 

 Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulance 

 Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for 

example communication networks with the police and signing up for local 

incidents alerts. (See paragraph 2.4 above) 

27



 Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate 

first aid kits 

 Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, 

through the provision of information on late-night transportation) 

 Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (See 

paragraphs 2.12-2.13) 

 Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (See paragraph 2.3 

above) 

2.9 The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between 

premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. Applicants should 

consider when making their application which steps it is appropriate to take to 

promote the public safety objectives and demonstrate how they achieve that. 

Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises 

2.10 Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely 

leave their premises. Measures that may assist include: 

 Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can 

provide safe transportation home and 

 Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading 

to and from the premises and in car parks. 

Public nuisance 

2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate 

to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 

premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 

licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 

of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 

(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 

disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, 

light pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is 

however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law 

meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and 

working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of 

the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse 

effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to 

health. 

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to 

control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a 

simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a 

particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a 

28



certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or 

rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be 

appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be 

enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable 

(see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public 

nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific 

premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate 

or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the 

community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase 

and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues. 

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in 

certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those 

living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of 

licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when 

their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 

legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 

additional conditions may be appropriate. 

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions 

should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive 

period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the 10 

| Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 early morning 

when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. 

This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 

pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the 

premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers 

enter and leave. 

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 

personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in 

antisocial behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 

reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 

representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 

the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they 

wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and 

to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night. 

Protection of Children from harm 

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from 

moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from 

the harms associated directly to alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 

exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 

exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also 

consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking 

licensing functions. 

29



2.23 The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to 

children. Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which 

are appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, 

conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered 

in circumstances where: 

 Adult entertainment is provided 

 A member or members of the current management have been convicted for 

serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking 

(other than in the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 

year olds consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult 

during a table meal); 

 It is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access; 

 There is known association with drug taking or dealing; or 

 In some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of 

alcohol for consumption on the premises 

2.24 It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at 

certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate 

as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment 

with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is no possible to give an exhaustive list of what 

amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, 

responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point 

carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-

dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or 

actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong and offensive 

language. 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times 

at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for 

children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of 

premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure 

that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not 

displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when 

preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be 

taken to protect children from harm when on the premises. 

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities 

taking place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age 

verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can 

include: 

 Restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 

 Restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 

particular specified activities are taking place; 

30



 Restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access; 

 Requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination 

of requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be 

accompanied by an adult); and 

 Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable 

activities are taking place. 

2.28 Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory 

Licensing Conditions) Order 2010. 

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about 

child protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate 

directly to child protection, the Director Public Health may also have access to relevant 

evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include, amongst 

other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to 

underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence 

to the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as 

ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 year old 

with alcohol-related illness or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the 

licensing authority should also consider what actin is appropriate to ensure this 

licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a 

licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms 

in persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers 

what conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted 

effectively. 

2.30 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate 

authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of 

children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a 

body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the 

licence (the British Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has 

been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in 

Chapter 10. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



E) Observations. 

The Sub Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting 

the licensing objectives which are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm. 

 
In making its decision, the Committee is also obliged to have regard to national 
guidance and the Council’s own Licensing Policy. Of course, the Committee must 

have regard to all of the representations made and the evidence it hears. 

The Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for 

the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 Grant the application as asked. 

 Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or adding to them. 

 Reject the whole or part of the application. 

15 32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



580



581



582



583



584



585



586



587



588



589



590



591



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 PROCEDURES FOR SUB COMMITTEE
	6 CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003
	ATIK_Officers_Report.pdf
	Application 1_Application for review of a premises licence.pdf
	Application 2_Witness Statements.pdf
	Application 3_TVP Licensed Premises Incident Reports_PartI.pdf
	Application 4_TVP Licensed Premises Incident Reports_PartII.pdf
	Application 5_TVP Licensed Premises Incident Reports_PartIII.pdf
	Application 6_TVP Licensed Premises Incident Reports_PartIV.pdf
	Application 7_TVP Licensed Premises Incident Reports_PartV.pdf
	Application 8_TVP Licensed Premises Incident Reports_PartVI.pdf
	Supporting Emails from Responsible Authorities.pdf
	Redacted Premises Licence.pdf


